Divination



Catherine OJ( Sienna



CATHERINE OF SIENNA

Catherine Benincasa, was born prcma'cur:m on March 25 1347, in Siena,

Italy to Giacomo di Benincasa, a cloth c]qr.r and l_ap;! F-'u.:gr.nl:i. Catherine’s twin

sister, Giovanna didn't survive.
At age six Catherine experienced a vision of Christ. At age seven,
5 .

Catherine vowed to dedicate her life to God.
After her older sister Bonaventura died in childbirth, mhh‘_‘.cn—Hcﬂr-ﬂld

Catherine was pr-:s.nurr.:d to marry Bonaventura’s widower. Due to her vow and her

dislike of the widower, she ]:nr.gan a fast. She would continue this practice
thrnughnut her life. Concerned for her Future, her mother insisted she pay more
attention to her appearance In protest, Catherine cut off her Ja'mg, hair.

Catherine next had a vision of 5. Dominic and wanted to join his order.
tventually her parents gave in, and at the age of sixteen 5hv.-.jt::ir-n:d the Third
Order of 5t. Dominic, an order of 1aﬂpcr5ung. T|'|t5 taught Catherine to read.

At a_gr.-.d twenty-one, Catherine c:;]:rcr:cnc:c] what she described in her
letters as a 'M_r:ptic.al Marriage® with Jesus. In this vision she was told bH Christ to
leave her withdrawn life and enter the Ful-r[ir. life of the world. Catherine l:legan
helping the ill and the poor, including nursing patients with leprosy and advanced
cancer. As social and Fn|st|ca| tensions mounted in Siena, Catherine felt
:‘ﬂmpr“r_d to intervene in Pnhtucﬁ. She jnurnr.ﬂtd to Florence where she a::riurrr.d
K.a_:_;mc:nd of Capua as her confessor and 5Piritua| director.

In June 1376 Catherine went to Avignon as ambassador of Florence to make

eace with the F‘apai States. Her efforts were unsuccessful, and Florentine
leaders disowned her. Catherine’s work had F-aw:& the way for peace and
Fﬂllﬂwmg her dcparturc the rlorentine leaders sent ambassadors to negotiate.
::.at"lcrine sent an aFFrnFriate[H ECCIFCI'HHS letter back to Florence in responsc.

Catherine returned to Siena, and in autumn 1377 and E-csan the wrikting of
her Dr'afdsue.

Late in 1377 Catherine went to Morence when Gregory X| asked her to hciF
seek peace between Florence and Rome. !"c:l”u::lwmg Gregory’s death, riots broke
out and she was n:ar|ﬂ assassinated. In November Ff,-;".ﬂ,thc new F'opc, Urban vi,
summoned her to Rome. She helped convince his court of his legitimacy.

For many years Catherine received an[ﬂ. the HUIH Communion a; a ::faih.j
basis. This caused great concern for her health. From the bcginnins of 1380, -
Catherine could neither eat nor swallow water. 5t Catherine died in Rome, on AFni
122.15380, at age 54.

Three genres of work I:'H Catherine survive:

* Her major treatise, The D;afo_._s;uc of Divine Providence.

. Cathcrrinc.'a. letters are considered one of the great works of -:arlﬂ Tuscan
literature. More than 300 have survived. P.FFrc!:matel_lj one third of her

letters are to women.




1o prayers of Catherine also survive.
FPope Pius Il r;-mumu-r] St Catherine on June 19, 1461. On Oc tober 3, 1970,

ape Paul vi Zave Catherine the title of Doctor of the Chure b
Avila -Lhrrs:\trrnlw:r 27, 13?;-'{"'- n1.'|L.|r'n.-‘.'.

this title was

1ost 5|n1u|L3m:nu:‘-lr_+ given to Saint Teresa ot

them the first women to receive this honor
Catherine ranks h|g]'| among mystics and :arn.-r|.*u.3|
rrs-pm:tcd for her Fu:.11:'r|r.a| hcﬂ-:‘tnrﬁ-ﬁ to ':mr.-nL. truth to Ennw-:r'— when it was

writers. She's greatly

unacce Pt-;-:lhh: t




Elizabeth O)C Schonau



ELIZABETH OF SCHONAU

El:z.:ll‘rrth WwWas bnrn about 1129 A.D., of an obscure Farm|H named 1iar1'w|5.

She was educated at the double monastery of Schénau in Nassau and made her
profession as Benedictine in 1147,

In 1157 she became abbess of the nuns under the supervision of Abbot
Hildelin. In the 12'" century it was customary that c-1'||_¢_g women of noble birth were
sromotad to _-,P.'ntu.xl offices in the Benedictine order and ah‘hﬂush little is known

} Y
about her birth Fﬂmul_q it seems le:-.aH: that Elizabath was of noble birth.

She is described as given ko works of plety from her Hﬂulh, much afflicted
with bodily and mental suffering. She was also known to be a zealous observer of
the Rule ::-!T Saint Benedict and to the rcgufatinn of her convent. She was devoted
to Frrar.tr'c..:_-. of mortification. In the years 1147 to 1152 Elizabeth su Frered recurrent

disease, anxicty and d:prcﬁmnn as a result of her strict asceticism. 5t. Hild:5;|l-d
of Bingen admonished Elizabeth in letters to be Frud:nt in the ascetic life.

In 1152, Elizabeth bc_g;an to -:xpcr'rcn-:.c ecstatic visions of various kinds.
These generally occurred on Sundays and Holy Days at Mass or Divine OFfice or
after ]"u:armg or rcadins the lives of saints. She rcpnrtcd that Christ, the Virgin
Mary, an an_gf:." or the Al:itr_:a| saint of the daH would appear to her instruct her;
or she would see quite realistic n:l::r'c.:rc.ntal:ians of the Passion, Resurrection, and

Ascension, or other scenes of the Old and New Testaments.
what thzal:-eth saw and heard she F-ut down on wax tab|et.5.

Her abbnt, Hildelin, told her to relate these t|'rfn5-5 to her brother Eg,l'icr‘t
(or Eckebert). A priest at the church of Bonn then edited them. At First Elizabeth
hesitated fearing she would be deceived or be looked upon as a deceiver.
However, she ana”H C.DFHF-H:&:{ with her abbot's instructions. E5|::crt {(who became
a monk of Schénau in 155 and cvcntua”g succeeded Hildelin as second abbot) Flut
c-.-er_.n:ltl'lms in writing. He later arransed the material at leisure and then Fublml‘::d
them all under his sister's name. The events in the First book Pmbahlﬂ took |::|acc
before Hildelin told Elizabeth to write these th'rﬂg,a down. The tl'linsn in the later
books may have been after this Fnint in time and occurred when Elizabeth had

.ﬂrcadﬂ bcg‘un writing,

Thus came into existence three books of “visions®. OF these the first is
written in lansuag_i: very 5imF|c and in unaffected :il:ﬁ]r.. The other two are more
elaborate and rci:l|c.tc with thco]nﬁf:ﬂl terminulo&i.

There is a great diutrs:ty of -::Piniﬂ-n n n:__gard to her revelations. The

Church has never Fassed sentence upon them nor even examined them. Elizabeth

f-;.:rueH-— Was convinccd DF Hw:ir suF:rnatura| c]ﬁarar_tcr, as she states in a letter to

Hildcgard, Her brother held the same opinion.

Elizabeth of Sch#nau is considered to be a German Benedictine visionary.
When her writings were Puhii:shed, the title of *Saint* was added to her name. She
was never canonized. In 1584 her name was entered in the Roman Mart_grufaﬁg and
has remained there.

She died on June 18, 1164 and was buried in the abb:ﬂ church of st. rlorin.




Marﬁ Dger



MARY BARRETT DYEK

Tradition has it that Dyer was the daughter of E_ﬂ::IH Arbella Stuart and Sir
william 5:5111.;:“1-, around 1811 A.D. However, since her maiden name was Barrett,
this is doubtful. As a child, she was an occasional guest of the rﬂ_tﬂ-dl court of King
Charles I. The ball gown worn for these visits was brought with her to Colonial

" a # 1
America .-m::[ Picccs- are ,-,;nd to |:Jc n thc F:m!:ﬁsmn UF her dcjr_tndantﬁ.

She married william Dyer, a Fqshmnnger and milliner in the New Enfhangc. as
well as a Puritan, in London on October 27, 1655, She gave birth to a total of .cl_r.;|11.'

children, two U{: who died in mFancH.
In late 1634 the Dyers :mmlsratr.c] to Massachusetts, where william D‘Hcr

took the Oath of a Freeman at the General Court in Boston on March 3, 16335.

They were admitted to the Boston Church on December I3, 1635.

In 16%7, the DHErﬁ became upcn 5uppﬂrtcr5 ot Anne Hutchinson, who
Frcachcd that God -ﬁPDL.i: dlﬂ:-::l.|_4._,| to individuals® rather than c:m[r_.; thruugh the

c|cr55.

Dyer Imncd Hutchinson and the Rev. John Wh.:r_lwrisht durlns the
*antinomian T—:cr:sq' p:ra’ud, in which t|'u:5| worked to arganize groups of women
and men to 5tud1_.j the Bible in contravention of the theocratic law of the
Massachusetts ElaH Co|nn_¢j. Mary also Followed Hutchinson to the C.n[cmg of

Rhode I1sland and Providence Plantations.

Dyer gave birth on October 11, 1657, to a deformed stillborn I‘m':n_q. who was
buried prwattlﬂ. Hutchinson was tried for I|'n::rvz:55 and the Hutchinsons and Dyers
banished from Massachusetts in January 163%7. E-l"lcrHH after these events, the
authorities learned of the *monstrous birth*, and Governor John Wiﬂf-}'lrﬂp had the
baba'& corpse exhumed in March 1638, before a |af5¢. crowd. He described it thus:

‘It was of ardmarH bisncﬁs; it had a face, but no head, and the ears stood upon
the shoulders and were like an .'!FII'_"'E; it had no Fcrchcad, but over the eyes Four
1f'n:n-rr‘nlj., hard and ﬁharl:r; two of them were above one inch 1ﬂn51 t+1r. other two
ﬁhnrl’:r; the eyes stanﬂing out, and the mouth a|5c-, the nose hooked upmafd, all
over the brcau-l' and back Full ;JF ﬁhﬂl’P Pricir.;& and HC.;'.IEEE, like a tharnl:mclx, the
navel and all the l:u:“y, with the distinction of the sSEN, Were where the back should
l'.u-., and the back and |'1|P5 IJ:'Fnrr,, where the bc“H should have l'nr,rn-, behind,
between the !Ilhml[ﬂr.r.&. it had two mnull'l:'-. and in each of them a prece of red Hesh
ﬂhc.lr,l'n_g out; it had arms and Fc_i_r;u as other c|'1!'|::|rt'.n: but, instead of toes, it had on
¢m‘.|'1 Fuut l:hr:: c[aws, like a young anl, with 5|!mrp talons.*

er‘ltl'll'ﬂF sent dmcriphnna to numerous v:-:rrr-:upcrndcnts, and accounts
wWers I'*ulf‘rli.ﬂhf:c‘f in I‘nsland in 1642 and 1644, The deformead birth was considarad

{‘VEJCHCE ﬂl: ti‘ll‘ 1m-.rc:ur:5 tll'ld CErrors III'JIF antinomianism.




In 1638, the [“'Hrrq were banished from the u:r|nnq, and followed Hutchinson
to Rhode 1sland. The group then moved to Portsmouth, where William Dyer signed
the Portsmouth Compact in March 1638 .ﬂum‘ with 18 other men. The Dyers
ultim: ;h:l;i settled in Nl:wE:';_'lrt where Eu‘ 1640, william had =n_r:1u1l ed 87 acres of
land. He flourished in thrr‘c_, serving as .‘u'rr'rtdr'q for the towns of Portsmouth
and h:wpurl from 1640 to 1647, General Recorder, and urtlmatclﬂ Attorney
General from 1850 to 1655.

Mary was dissatisfied with Rhode 1sland life, and traveled alone to [‘nqlnnd
in 1650, where she Furn:d the Religious Society of Priends (Quakers) after hearing

the preaching of its Founder, George Fox. She eventually became a Quaker
preacher in her own right.

William briefly jalncd her but returned alone to Rhode Island in 1652. Mary

remained in England another five years. Her 1657 return to New England was ill

timed. When Mary's :.J'-HF landed in Boston, she was lmmrdlatHH arrested. Her
husband secured her release because of his Prumlnent social status in Rhode

island and on the condition that william * gives his honor® that Mary would never

return to Massac hu:-::l.‘hs.

Dyer continued to travel in New Eng|and to Prc;:ch Quakerism, and was
arrested in 1658 and cxpc“n:d from New Haven, Connecticut for prcachins *inner
Fr‘_u;ht' and the notion that women and men stood on cqunl Eruund in church wurshup
and nrsanizatjun. a".[-l-:r her refcasc_. she i“cga”a returned to Maa‘-.«_a.achuaetts to
visit two imPrisonec{ I’_'n5||'5|'| Quakers, William Robinson and Marmaduke
'rltCFlhcn'i{'}ﬂ When she traveled to Massachusetts a third time with a group of

-f"lu.]Lcrs to Fubhr!;} de'Fq the L’i'ﬁ' she was arrested and sentenced to death. After
a Ehul’t‘ trlaF two ctl‘:cr Qua L;crf. were ]'lani_l;r:;l !:rut ["":.I:r wWas 1Fﬂrtd at the |.-I&t‘
minute because her son interceded on her 1‘.-::I'|..:|” abﬂrnst her wishes.

She was forced to return to Rhode Island, and traveled to Long Jsjand New
York to Prcarh but her conscience led her to return to Massachusetts in AFnl
1660 to dcmra; the rcp¢a| r.ﬂ: that wicked [anti- LluaLer] law ﬂs_ﬂll‘lat God's F::c-p|
and offer up her life there. Dcspitc her husband and 'Farni'ﬂ'a Picas, she refused
to ri:F!l..-.r‘ll:, and was again convicted and sentenced to death on June 1. The next
daﬂ. as she was escorted to the ga"owu .’DH Captain John Evered of the Boston
miEitnrH company, Evered said to her *...that she |'|ac|, Prcvir.‘:us]_lj been found 5"”'{5
of the same c.har'g_;c, and been banlshcd. that she now had one last chance to
repent and be banished again.” Dyer refused and was then hanscd.




Minnie Evans



MINNIE EVANS

Minnie Evans (Jones) was born December 12, 1892. She was the oniy child

Ella Jones of Pender County, North Carclina,

of Jcmeph K:Hcg, a Farmer, and
Imington car|5 in 1893 to live with her

Ella, then only 14 years old, moved to Wi

g‘r.rr‘ldmnthcr__ who assumed rcaponmi:u“tﬂ for Minnie.

Minnie Evans attended school through the sixth grade, dropping out
because of the I:.am||5's economic hardship She found a ic:i:n as a *sounder® selling

51'11-.|||Fis'h door to door. In 1908 she |::|l..|='t to marry Julius Jones. The i.'.-ﬂl-lF‘lC had

three sons.

Beginning in 1916, Minnie Evans was emp[n_ch as a domestic at the home of

yer, Pembroke Jones, a wcalthﬂ industrialist. The Jones’

her husband's !"."!Plt'.!
2,200-acre huhting estate, *Pembroke Park.

;.lmllﬂ lived on Jones's

Evans besan drawmg on Good rri&a_uj 19%5. 5he said *I had a dream, its

voice .-spalcc to me: ‘Why don’t you draw or die? ‘Is that it?' | said, 'My, My."

Evans was 4% when she crcatcd her First Fi:cz: 1::.-; artwr:nrk on a scrap nF

g. Mive years later she decided to really dedicate herself to recording her

paper ba
g ink, Sraphite. wan

dreams t'nmush art. She later worked with more Prccrsion. usin
crayon, watercolor and oil on canvas, board and paper.

In 1948, Minnie Evans became the Airlie Satck:cpcr, with this n:chrb her
work b:‘g,.m to bloom in colors and in images of actual Flowers. She also 1_‘.11:53:1

5c!|ln5 her artwork on the side.

in 1961, she had her first formal exhibition of drawings and oils at a gallery
in Wilmington. In 1962 she became Friends with Nina Howell Starr who would
ublicize her work for the next 25 years. In 1966 Starr arranged for Evans’ first
New York exhibit. In 1975 Starr curated a rnajor Evans exhibition at the Wh:tncg

Museum of American Art.

Minnie Evans was unaffected bﬂ her new :,-:|c’nrit3, she felt she was i,ust
doing what the Lord told her to do. Evans’ drawings were filled with many colors.
Her dc&isrm were camp[ex, with elements reca"mg the art of China and the
Caribbean combined with more Western themes. The central motif in many pieces
is a human face surrounded I:’H P|anl: and animal forms. The eyes, which Evans
r:quat:d with God's omniscience, are central to each Fig,urc. In addition, God is
sometimes ::chu'ctcd with Wings and a multicolored collar and halo and shown

surrounded bq all manner of creatures.

Of her drawings, Evans once said that *this art that | have put out has
come from the nations | suppose might have been destroyed before the flood. . . .
No one knows anythin about them, but God has given it to me to brins them back

into the world."

Evans died December 14, 1987, leaving more than 400 artworks to the 5t.
Johns Museum of Art in Wi|minstun.

Evans was the subjcct nF the dn:um:ntarﬁ The An_gc." that Stands b‘g Me:
Minnie Evans' Artin 1983,

Now rccnsnized as one of the most important visionary folk artist of the
20th century, her work is hi5|1|5 collected b_tj many museums and collectors across
the world. DcﬁFiti: her Prcr'i'Fil:. and |ﬂn5 career, her works do not come up for sale
often. Her work can be viewed at such museums as the Museum of Modern Art, the
Smithsonian Institution, the Abby Aldrich Rockefeller Folk Art Museum, the '
American Folk Art Museum, the whitncg Muscum of American Art, the Cllgdcn
Museum of Southern Art, and the Hfg_h-Muﬁcum of Art.




Saint Teresa o)f Avila



TERESA OF AVILA

it is love alone that gives worth to all t'H:nEr_s.' - 5t. Tercsa of Avila

aptir.:d as Teresa

Teresa of Avila, also called Saint Teresa of Jesus, b
hez de Cepeda y Ahumada, was a prominent Spanish mystic, Roman C atholic

Sanc
saint, Carmelite nun, an author of the Counter Reformation and theologian of

c:‘..-ntr.mpiuhl.-c life thrr:rug'h mental prayer. She was a reformer of the f.ul'mc]:tc

Order and is considered to be a founder of the Discalced Carmelites along with

John of the Cross
Teresa de Cepeda y Ahumada was born in on December 6,
Alonso Sanchez de

1519 in

Gotarrendura, in the province of Avila, Spain. Her Father,
Cepeda, bought a knighthood and successfully assimilated into Christian society.
Teresa's mother, Beatriz de Ahumada y Cuevas, was capcclﬂnﬂ keen to raise her
daughtcr aAs a Pil.'ll.l-,"i- Christian.

When Teresa was 14 her mother died, causing the girl a F-r;:n{:nund grief that
E_'rrﬂrnpted her to embrace a cl:tpcr devotion to the Virgin M.ar'ﬂ as her !-l|:.'|ri1:u-3|
mother. Teresa was sent for her education to the Augustinian nuns at Avila.

In the cloister, she suffered SrcaHH from illness. EarlH in her 5i-:.1t.ﬁc:|-:-, she
::‘.pericnc:d P:nod.s of religious ecstasy through the use of the devotional book
the Third SPJrr'tuaf..M:pﬁaﬁer !?H- Francisco de Osuna. This work, Ft.‘:”.::wms the
exa mFFn of similar writings of medieval mystics, consisted of directions for
examinations of conscience and for 5Firitu.1| self-concentration and inner
c.:)nt:mpial:iﬂn.

She claimed that during her illness she rose from the lowest stage,
‘recollection®, to the *devotions of silence® or even to the *devotions of ecstasy’,
which was one of F:chct union with God. During this final stage, she said she
Frcquenﬂﬂ c:-thri::nc-:.d a rich *blessing of tears.* She also became conscious of
her own natural impotence in confronting sin, and the necessity of absolute
ﬂubjr.r.tmn to God.

" Around 1556, various friends ﬁuagc:.t:d that her newfound L-ﬂowlr,c']sc was
diabolical, not divine. She began to inflict various tortures and mortifications of
the flesh upon herself. But her confessor, the Jesuit Saint Francis Borgia,
reassured her of the divine inspirati-::n of her th-:.‘:us'r'lta. On 5t. Peter's Day in
1559, Teresa became Firml_x_-.j convinced that Jesus Christ F-re.:rcntr:d himself to her in
]:cn:iiIH form, thuugh invisible. These visions lasted almost unint:rrupl:ed for more
than two years.

The memory of this cpiuod: served as an inf-piratian I:hrc:ugi'lau’: the rest of
her life, and motivated her ]i¥:[an5imitatinn of the life and 5u”¢r|ns of Jesus,
epitomized in the motto usually associated with her: Lord, either let me suffer or

Jzt me die.
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Teresa entered a Carmelite Monastery of the Incarnation in Avila, Spain,

z ‘I.-;}u.r-rzmlf'lcr 1555, She found herself in r]mh:irmur'uj 'm't|'| th: :-|:\:ritu.5| malaise

on & I
PFEU..M[II'I_'E‘ at the Incarnation. Among the 150 nuns living there, the observance ot

cloister—designed to protect and stren hen the spirit and practice of prayer—
B F 5 P I P

became so lax that it actually lost its very purpose. There were invasion of visitors

who contaminated the atmasphere with frivalous concerns and vain conversations
|

These violations of the solitude necessary to progress in -:nntemp!:ih'vc prayer

Ernev:d Teresa dn:F:Ir.j.
The incentive to take action was :n&p:rcci in Teresa hﬂ the Franciscan pries

Saint Peter of Alcantara who became ac-;fuamtcrl with her and became her ﬁFIFitun!]

5U1dE ﬂnd 1.'.1.‘.|ui'|._‘i!:|f.‘ll‘.

She resolved to found a reformed Carmelite convent, correcting the laxity

that she had found in the Cloister of the Incarnation.

Guimara de Ulloa, a woman of wealth and a friend, !.-u'::phcr_'l the funds.

The absolute |::.;:u.-1_-.rl:1.4 of the new monastery, established in 1562 and named

5t. J.-;ME'FI]W_ at First excited a :-::nnda] among the c_|t|;::rrs and authorities of Avila.
The little house with its c.haF-¢| was in peril of suppression; but F.:-wcrhl patrons,
1n|:!ud|n5 the biﬁh@p himself ended the al'lln"lr}f-ifH.

in March 1563, when Teresa moved to the new cloister, she received the

which she Pr::rc.cca.‘it::] to

papa| sanction of her Fr'irne Prinr_-ip|c of absclute pcw:rtH..

formulate into a "Constitution®. Her pian was the revival of th: cartirr, stricter

ru|cs.
in 1567, she received a patent from the Carmelite general, Rubeo de

Ravenna, to establish new houses of her order, and in this effort she made long

journcys thrnush nearly all the provinces of Spain.

. A part of her arig_ina| Fat:nt, Teresa was given permission to set up two
houses for men who wished to adapt the reforms She convinced John of the Cross
and Anthnnﬂ of Jesus to hn[F with this. Thr.H. founded the first convent of
Discalced Carmelite Brethren in November 1548 at Duruello. Another friend,

Gerdnimo Gracian, gave her Flcrm.-.rFul :'-uFFr.'rrt' in Founding four additional
canvents.

In 1576 a series of Pcracr_utiﬂnﬁ }:csan against Teres
reforms. Pursuant to a body of resolutions adapt-:d at the general chaptcr at
Piacenza, the order forbade all further founding of convents. The gcncral r_hal:rtcr
condemned her to u-a!untarﬁ retirement to one of her institutions. She ubeﬂ:d and

chose 5t. Jnscph'n at Toledo. Her friends and subordinates were subjected to

a, her friends, and her

src.atcr trials.

T‘ina”_g. after several years her P|r_adin5.$ I:-H letter with King F'hihp Il of
Spain secured relief. As a result, in 1579, the processes before the inquisition
against her, Gracian, and others were droppcd. A brief of Pope Gregory XliI

allowed a 5P¢r_la| Fr(}\fmclal For the younger branch of the discalced nuns, and a




rCI_t_gﬂI r'cscrnpt created a F:l'ﬂt‘cctwt board of four assessors for the reform.

During the last three years of her life, Teresa founded sixteen additional
convents, and as many men's cloisters.

Her final illness overtook her on one of her journeys from Bu rgos to Alba
de Tormes. She died on October 4, 1582. Her last 1:.'-:.}1'1. s were: "My Lord, it is time
to move on. Well then, may your will be done. O mey Lord and my ..‘_ilf_‘-lr?r..f.iﬂ'. the hour
that | have f::rng:n" for has come. It is time to meet one another.*

FUFH-'- Gregory XV canonized her in 1622, Fnr‘t_q ycars after her death. Po pe
Paul bestowed upon her the |::a|:!-.3| honor of Doctor of the Church, F-r_r.f-l'humnuﬁl_r..}.
in Dece ml:u,-.r 27,1970 alnrrS witl‘: Saint {.__..'ﬂ:hnr'm: u',:{'. S5iena rna|:|r15 thcrn the 'Ftrﬁl‘
women to be awarded the distinction.

Teresa is revered as the Doctor of Prayer. The mysticism in her works
exerted a formative influence upon many thn}lﬂg:ans of the Fﬂ”awing centuries.

Teresa is one of the foremast writers on mental prayer, and her position

among writers on H'Itj.':t!c.j;'li th:gﬂu&r_j is unique. In all her wr‘ltiﬂss on this subiect she

deals with her Ff.r.-_sc_rn;l] experiences. Her dCCF |n5i5[‘|t and ana]_qtic.ai Ei r'l's 11:|Fu-.:|

her to anFain them r_|ce::r|£._|_
Saint Teresa, who rcPDrtcd visions of Jesus and Mary, was a strong
believer in the power of l'm|_:j water and wrote:
“Let ﬂﬂthmg disturb you.
Let nothing make you afraid. all thingﬁ are passing, God alone never
tf-l'lflﬁsl'!:l-FatH.'-l'lf-c Zains all th!nﬁs. I you have God you will want for nﬂthnng.{]nf{

a[{mr. 5!..||:l:i1.'.{.'.5.'




Saint \)oam o)c Arc
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JOAN OF ARC

Joan was born on January &, 1412 the r|.1ug5'4t-:r of Jacques d'Arc and
Isabelle Romée[25]on January -t'-, 141% in the village of Domrémy

Joan Lﬂr_r :eﬁh{:::.-.'i 1}-..1.1 ::.i'u: .:-.\,Prrufnr.r.r.i .}"IL"I' First vision -Z'lrl'i'lJ"'“'—‘I |14 at ”-"r
age ot 12 years, when she was in her “father's garden® and saw visions of Saint
Michael, saint Catherine, and Saint Margaret, who told her to drive out the
Tlnl_gr_||$]"| and l-\rlnglti'nc El.iu[_\hun to Reims fFor his coronation. She said she cried
when t]'lﬂ_l_l |E¥t, as t}‘u‘:ﬂ were so beautiful

At the age of 16, she asked a relative to take her to Vaucouleurs, where she
petitioned the garrison commander, Baudricourt, for permission to visit the royal
French court at Chinon.

Baudricourt's negative response didn’t deter her. She returned the
*‘.::!”';'.FWIHS ._lnnllar_|:+ nn.:‘[ Eﬂlnrd :uJF-Fnrt I:rf:m two of haur[rlcuurt':- soldiers .‘5|'|r.
gained a second meeting, where she made a remarkable prcriu‘ticm about a military
reversal near Orléans

Robert de Baudricourt granted her an escort to visit Chinon after news
i"ri.lrn Orleans confirmed her Prcdictic_:-n. She made the journey in male a.';mg;u'.'ir-
UF.u:m arriving at the F(r.'rf’.!'ll Court she LmFrr'eﬁscd Charles vii ciurm\;;a pr'n.-.:nt:
conference. Dur|h5 this time Yolande of Aragon was Fu‘u‘sncmgn relief r.:-:F:diticm
to Orléans. Joan asked for Fmrmr.ﬁﬁicm to travel with the army and wear pr-:"tdcl‘l'-'c
armor, w!‘uch W3S F!rf_nr:dcci |:t5 tl‘lr.'. I‘-'.ﬂ_l_jal 5.,1m:r‘nrnc:nt

Upon her arrival, Joan c!:l:c;:ti;-r:m turned the |q::n5.-;t;1nd|n5 Ansh‘n-l'rcnch

conHict into a rcligic}u:. war. Charles’ advisers were worried that unless Joan's
orthodoxy could be established beyond doubt — that she was not a heretic or a
sorceress — Charles’ enemies could easily make the allegation that his erown was a

E;ljr_-t from the devil. The Dathin Drd:rcduin;-;c Lgr'ﬂ-und inquiries and a theological

examination at Poitiers to v.-cr:i:ﬂ her murulltH. In a"«prd 1429, the commission of
inquiry *declared her to be of irrcproar.hch life, a _i_;-;md Christian, P;.msc.:-:-cc{ of
the virtues of humihtﬂ. h.::m.—..-utH and 5|m;|:.~ln.-|'t5,.* The I'hc;‘:insmn:i at Poitiers
informed the [‘J:._lul:-hin that there was a ‘favorable F-rcsumpticm' to be made on the
divine nature of her mission. To doubt or abandon her without suspicion of evil
would be to repudiate the Hr':-iH ."_-'-Firit and to become unwarthﬂ of God's aid’, thcﬂ
declared. The test For the truth of her claims would be the raising of the siege of
Orléans.

She arrived at the siege of Orléans on .*"*.Pri| 129|419, but Jean d'Orléans,
the acting head of the dur_a| I:arnﬂﬂ, :mhaﬂﬂ excluded her {:n;::m wWar cnun-:rl:- and
failed to inform her when the army cngngcd the enemy.

However, his exclusions &n-:l not Frrcvcnl- her presence at most councils and
battles. Noblemen such as the Duke of Alengon always had direct command; but
on the other hand, many of these same nnl’:i:m:n 5tn.t¢:d that Joan had a prnhmnd

:FFr,r.t on their decisions




Historians agree that the army "-"'Ii'_l-j‘-'-"] remarkable success d uring her briet

time with the army
Cikiiey = Mo B R ==
Joan or Arc's appearance at ( irléans was followed by 8 sudden change In

the F-.H.Irrn of the slege ['?'urlng the Five months befare her arrival, the :T[:'l.t'.r'lricr':.'-

of Orléans ntrrmF'trn' L'1r|=_[_| one aggressive move and that had ended in disaster
But now, On May +th, the Armagnacs attacked and c.‘apturcd the :'ruth_jlrlf_, fortress
of Saint ]_1_'.!|..'F:_ which was Fn”..'-wh'l on M,g_;. sth with a march to a second tortress
called Saint-Jean-le-Blanc, which was Found deserted. When E n:‘.;'*-:-h troops came
out to -;.r[JPcr.ar. the .':-r]\,.'-:m'.r.. i r.]u:u.':L L.}\rﬁ!rl_{ .:h;:rgr drove them back into their
fortresses, without a FIE"If. The Ar magnacs then attacked and captu red an L-'"_'*';l"'-“h
F.{'Jl"ll'\"bh built around a mnn.‘-i.f-l'r.r.r.} called Les .-"".ugu:%tinﬁ_ E«rm_-.gn:h‘ h-u-r_'l:.:‘-'ﬁ-
maintained positions an the south bank of the river before ;!t'c-.u'.Lil"lg the main
= -"lg;ll.-.uh atmn_t_*_‘im|-:i called *les Tourelles® on the mclrnrnlﬁ_',nf May o
! n.'!ﬂtcmp{':r';!rl.:r'r ac |-.nnw|:dgcc{ Joan as the heroine of the en| ement after she
WS \\-nund-r.:l l-'-‘l.l an arrow i_mtwrr.n the neck and shn'.ruh.:lcr w]'llil.' hgﬁi._‘{ing her banner
in the trench l.:ltl.tﬁii'.tl'. Les Tourelles, but she later returned to encourage a final
us:iauH, which succeeded in tnl:m_g; the fortress. The € nglrﬁh retreated from
Orléans the next d.ﬂ_g, and the siege was aver,

At Chinon and Poitiers Joan had declared that she would give a sign at
Orléans. The |H:tin5 of the sicge was in I:':rFrn:ted EH maniy to be that sign, and it
5.1|nr.d |'|rr t|"rn .51_,|F.|Fprt of prominent g[rrﬂq riu;r.i': as t}‘lr. Arq‘."‘rhiﬁi‘:up of Embrun
and thctﬁic-gian Jean Gerson, who both wrote supportive treatiscs lmm:dl-'il'i:lgj
tollowing this avent.

The sudden '\-'n:.fnr_l:l at Orléans also led to many F""'-’F"'-'ﬁﬂl:" for Further offensive
action. Joan Fstrﬁuaded Charles VIl to allow her to accompany the army with Duke
._Jr_}hn I :'_ﬂ' .a'*.lcnqnn, and 5!‘:.: Saincd roHa] Pcrmi:_-i:.'n;m 'F:'_tr |'|cr P|.‘:n ko rr.n.‘..‘ii_‘ltur':
nearby hridses .-_a]:.mE-; the Loire as a Fnrciu.:]e to an advance on Reims and the
coronation of Charles Vil.

The Duke of A|cn;nn acr_.r.i;:tr.t:]. Joan's advice concerning strategy. Other
{c_}mman:!r_r:. 1nc|udrn5 Jean {]'C"}r]tans. |"r:_-|ci l'n_-cn Imprﬂﬁscd wltl"l her P:r#urme;r‘nce
at Orléans and became her supporters. Alencon credited her with saving his life at
Jargc.iu, where she warned him thaf a cannon on the walls was about to Fire at him
rlur':ng the same sicge she withstood a blow Fr:_':m a stone which hit her helmet
while she was near the base of the town's wall. The army took Jargeau on June
Ilrh, M:Lrng—ﬁur'—t,-;nrc on June 1_‘jt|'1, .-‘md h:aug:n:ﬂ on June I}""".

The l".nslr.&h army withdrew From the Loire "r'.r'_l”-:_Lj and headed north on June

d 13, joining with an cxpc:ét‘:d unit of reinforcements under the command of Sir John
r‘&.'i-l‘t_‘ll'F. Joan urg.r.r] {‘i'u: Armasna-;r. to Fu:l'.".ur._, and the two armies c.|1.-'=}1r.i;‘i
southwest of the 'ul||agc of Patay. The French 'u'anguan'i attacked a unit of En_u;!r:'-h
archers who had been Fr|.1c.e-.ef to block the road. A rout ensued that decimated the

main l'.lcn:hj of the E ng[lﬁ"r armuy and killed or :_'nFturra:] most of its commanders
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ish dc-{:rat The rr-:n:.h

suffered minimal losses.

The French army left Gien on Jun
.-u.c.:ptn:i the conditional surrender of the T!:ur'g.mdunn—ﬁ:h:i city of Auxerre on
._Iu|_q ‘\cl T royes, the site of the treaty that tried to CI.I,"-iI'IhCFIt Charles VI, was the

.:rr||1_, one, which I,-.-ut up even brief nFFu'.-mhcm_ Troyes :..-jpituh:t‘:d after a

e 1:?t!h on the march toward Reims, and

]?'Uf.n*”rss Fuur'-da:p siege.
army on _!uir__} 16th. The coronation took -|:'|.h-7.1:

Reims -:-Pcr::d its gates to the
on ur_qc:_‘| a 1_'1rnrn]::t

the !'-rj]in;}mwn_g" morning. .-‘n[thaug_h Joan and the Duke of Aleng
march an Paris, the r.-_mﬂ.'il court Pr:}fr_.rrcd a ﬂ:gﬂtli—!tﬂt‘i truce with the duke of
.“.n_:r5unc|H. The French assault at Paris ensued on 5:‘:Pt: mber 8th. DcsFrte a

wound to the ]cg from a crosshow belt, Joan remained in Paris’ inner trench until
she was carried back to safety by one of the
the army received a r-.".1|.|;¢| nrd-;:r to withdraw. M

i hamberlain Georges de la Trémaoille Far the Flul

commanders. The following morning
ost historians blame Prench Grand

|tn:;1.| l‘.-htr:.:]erf- thnt Fn”nw:d t}:c

coronation
In October, Joan was with the I'D_l.j:ii army when it took E-;-iintaF‘u-.rrc-Lr.-

Moltier, followed i:rH an unsuccesstul atte l'nl:}t to take La-Charité-sur-Loire in
November and Decembar.
However, the truce with tngjahd qui-:.HH came to

Compidgne the following May to help defend the city against an English and
1450 |t‘4:i ta her caFturc., when her farce

an c.—.d_ Joan tr.av.-f.lc-ﬂ to

E&ljr&';ul'lcltal'l .si:g::_ A skirmish on May 13,
attcmFtcd to attack the E}urg_undians' camp at Margny. when the troops Eegan to

withdraw tuw.’:rd the n,-:ar]:r_;:l I:curh{:m'_atinn-_-. of {_'.::rmpésne after the advance u{: an
additional force of 6,000 E&urgundians, Joan stayed with the rear 5uar-:|.

Burgundian troops surrou nded the rear Euard‘ and she was pu!icd off her horse.
She a__g,r:cr.l to surrender.

Joan was imprmun:d by the Burgundians at Beaurevoir Castle. She
attcmpt:d several escapes, after which she was moved to the Burgundian town of
Arras. The Ensli:’.h n.:_gutiatcd with their L‘-urgum:itaﬂ allies to transfer her to their
custody, with Bishop Pierre cauchon of Beauvais, an English partisan, assuming a
prominent role in these negotiations and her later trial. The English moved Joan
to the city of Rouen, which served as their main headquartcrﬁ in France.

The trial for heresy was olitically motivated. The tribunal was cumpcr:-cd
entirely of Prn-tnglush and l"lurg__un.r:linn clerics, and overseen by English
commanders. Lcsa] Frucccdings commenced on January fith 1431 at Rouen, the
seat of the Eng“sh occu Pnt'r-::n government. The Frm:edurc was irn:SuL']r on a
number of Foin'r,s_

under ecclesiastical law, Eti,'-i'lﬂF Cauchon lacked -|ur|5dir.t1un over the case.

Clerical notary Nicolas Bailly, com missioned to collect testimony against Joan,
could find no adverse evidence. Without such evidence the court lacked grounds



to initiate a trial i.?F-cn|n5 a trial anyway, the court also vlalatr.d f:c-:lcsmstu;ﬂ law
EH Eitﬂt}lng her the ng_‘ht to a 55531 adviser. Worse, r.te:c]-;ms the tribunal I.'.I'I“FC‘_I.]

. - ated the medieval Church's requirement that heresy :
clerics. Upon the opening of
rench side* to be

unl'l'l Flr-t.!—'l'...r‘ilg;lh'-h -'?ltrslj \-'H'J'l
trials needed to be iudged ]:r_q an |m!:-.3rh.'-:.| group of
the First pu blic examination Joan asked for *ecclesiastics of the I

invited in order to |::rmrid|: balance.
of France c:bbci:tr:d to the trial, and eyewitnesscs said the

The vice —in-:lumitc:-r

FHSllﬁh threatened his life.
The trial record demonstrates her remarkable intellect. The transcript's

most Famous cxfl'lanE,r. is an exercise in .x.u]:-t|ct_;.|. *Asked if she knew she was in

God's grace, she answered: '1F | am not, matj God F'ut me there; and if1am, maly
God so kl:c_Fn me."” The qu:stmn s a 5cho|ar|H trap. Chureh doctrine held that no
one could be cartain of b:mg in God's grace. if she had answered ges, then she
would have convicted herself of hr:rcsﬂ. if she had answered no, then she would
have confessed her own guilt. Notary Boisguillaume later te stified, “Those who
were interrogating her were 5tuF|:Fir:r_‘|.'

Court functionaries later testified that many portions of the transcript
were altered in her disfavor. Many clerics se rved under com Pu|5:nn, including the
inqum:tﬂr, Jean LeMaitrer. Under Inquimtnrm| ;_{_umh:hncs. Joan should have been
confined in an ecclesiastical prison under the su pervision of female 5uar'c]5.
Instead, the tnslish ir.r[:-t her in a secular !:-rFs.-:m gu.arcl:d I:'ﬂ male soldiers. ﬁ:ah:ﬂp
Cauchon denied Joan's appe als to the Council of Basel and the pope, which
should have 5tappcd the F-rm::cding.

The twelve articles of accusation that summarize the court's fmdm_g contradict the
already doctored court record.

The illiterate defendant 5i5r::d an ahluratlan document she did not
understand under threat of immediate .:_..-.::_qj tion. The court substituted a
different a.bjurafiﬂn in the official record.

i'!crr.;.H was a uapital crime un[H for a repeat offense. Joan asrcnd to wear
feminine r_]:::thung_ when she abjured.

Accc‘rrding to the later dc.ac.riptlons of some of the tribunal members, she
had rcvious-lh: been wearing male (i.e. miiil:arH’J clnt}:ins in prison because it gave
her the abi[lfﬂ to deter rape. A woman's dress offered no such Frﬂtcctiﬂn. A Few
daHs after adnpting a dress, ‘a great r'.ngfliah lord entered her prisan and tried to
take her bH force.” She resumed male attire ecither as a defense against
molestation or because her dress had been taken by the Euar&ﬁ and she was left
with nnthing else to wear. Her resumption of male ml]itar_:_; clnthsns was labeled a
r:lapﬂc into !'IEH!.SH. Medieval Catholic doctrine held that r.r-;msadrc.smng should
be evaluated based on context, as stated in the *Summa Then[ugir.n‘ h_q St.
Thomas Aguinas, which says that necessity would be a F-:fmifrsrbh- reason for

cross-dressing. This would include the use of clothing as protection against rape




erms or doctrine, she haa Deen |Uatificd

if the clr:thmﬂ would offer prr.:rt:ctlcm In t |
mn 4.‘II-!'|-IE;IJI'."|ET'|5 1'1rrﬁ:'.|F as a P:‘lEF!‘.r:J_I_] durlng 1‘11-.:- qu rnr_H thr{:ugh CIH:I'TIH tgr-rit(JrH
The L'..Fr:'um.i.luc de la Pucelle states that it deterred molestation while she was
c.d"np:d in the field. {_t:rﬂﬂ who later testified at the poﬁ{'humaus :IPFH:":!M‘ trial
affirmed that she continued to wear male clothing in prison to deter molestation
and rape.
She referred the court to the Poitiers inquiry when qur.st-r_mr.d on the
matter. The Poitiers record no longer survives but circumstances indicate the
Poitiers clerics had uPPrgvc& her practice She also kept her hair cut short
through her military campaigns and while in prison. Her supporters defended her
hairstyle for practical reasons. Nonetheless, at the trial in 1431 she was

c_nndcmnc.cl and .1cntcm'.i:c‘1 ko {ilt-
Eyewitnesses described the scene of the execution bH burning on May 30,

1431, Tied to a tall Fr-Har at the Vieux-Marché in Rouen, she asked two of the
clergy, to hold a crucifix before her. An English soldier also constructed a small
cross, which she put in the front of her dress. After she died, the English raked
back the coals to expose her charred body so that no one could claim she had
escaped alive. They cast her remains into the Seine from the r:m]H brudsc called
Mathilda. The executioner, Geoftroy Therage, later stated that he * .Er:atl_q

feared to be damn:d.'
Pope Callixtus 11! authorized a nullification ¢rial after the war ended. The

aim of the trial was to investigate whether the trial of condemnation and its verdict
8 had been handled 'u:ut]H and according to canan law. Investigations started with an
inquest hﬂ Guillaume Duui"&, a th¢a|u5jan and Former rector. He conducted an
investigation in 1452. A formal appeal followed in November 1455. The HFFEHEM
process involved clergy from throughout Curope and observed standard court
praccdurc. A panel of theologjans analyzed testimony from 115 witnesses. Bréhal
drew up his final summary in June 1436, which describes Joan as a martyr and
implicated the late Pierre Cauchon with heresy for having convicted an innocent
woman in pursuit of a secular vendetta. The nullification trial reversed the
conviction. The appellate court declared her innocent on July 7,1456.

Joan of Arc became a symbol of the Catholic League during the 16th
century. When r&lin Dupanloup was made bishop of Orléans in 1849, he
_ ronounced a fervid panegyric on Joan of Arc, which attracted attention in
E Cngland as well as Prance, and he led the efforts, which culminated in Joan of
E Arc's beatification in 1909. Fope Benedict XV canonized Joan on May 16 1920.
During World War I1, both the Vichy Regime and the French Resistance used
! her image: "JichH Prcpasanda remembered her cam paign against the En5||5|1 with
§ posters that showed British warplanes bombing Rouen and the ominous caption:
: 'T}u:i,, A|waﬁs Return to the Scene of Their Crimes.”
The Resistance cmphasizcd her |:i5.'nt against 'Fnr:ign c:c,r.upaticﬂ and her

h had fallen under Nazi control.

origins in the provlncc of Lorraine, whic
f Lorraine as a symbc—h: reference

The French Resistance used the cross o

to Joan of Arc.

Joan of Arc's religious visions have received a consensus among, scholars

that her Faith was sincere.




Bronia Koczicki



BRONIA KOCZICKI
childhood in Berlin. she married Rabbi

Bronia Kaczicki spent most of her
israel Abraham Koc zn:lu, aﬂd :1-11:.:, had two sons; Lvi and ‘r’ltnihﬂ.-k
Since the time of the occupation, Bronia had been wﬂrlr.ing; to hr.|p Jews

escape Germany. She now lived in Slotwina, Brzesko, near the train station and

the Wehrmachi H{:adquartcrﬁ.
It was a convenient Fiar.c to live; every evening an expreas train :'-tc:ppcd
for one and half minutes at 1:20 a.m. This was |u5t la:m_g :-.m::rul_xzrh for Bronia to iump

an fhl: train. .‘_'1114: ﬁcrw:cl as a couner, 1'd-|:|:1.-nt‘.rtr'l-_i_{r .-l"'-.rqan P.‘_af:rcr.‘a .am-] F:.'lrr_'igﬂ

passports to Jews in various parts of Poland. Bronia had one more advantage; her

German was impcr:.c.aH:. accent and all.
E‘I‘t_’:ﬂt.‘l'!-jﬂl‘.l was very dangcruu:a but she 11;-1& Hum:{ hair and blue eycs. Her

accent was pc.rh:ct. She could casily pass for a non-Jewish, German.

On a return trip one evening the train .5tnF-|:1cd for a Paﬁspc:rt check. As
Bronia was digging through hew purse for her passport, the officer in charge came
up and demanded, *Passportsl”

He looked at Bronia and :nclarmcd. *Not youl”

He said to the woman next Bronia, «Come with me.”

The woman never returned

A young German officer sat down next. .A]thuug_,h handanmc, his Face
::-.Frcssc.cj a Enad deal Pain. Tears streamed from the officer's closed eyes. He
told Bronia that he was on his wal home from Zhitomir.

"I gave the orders to shoat tham. Men, women, and children; all of them,
and | gave the order. We murdered them all.* he told her.He showed Bronia
pi:turc:\.

Bronia's felt Faint and kcpt ar-ki-ng hc.rs-:”, *How was this Faaﬂ-uhic?'

On the outside she had to control her emotions. The officer mistook the
emotion he sensed for SHmPathH_

At Tarnow, she qui::l-dﬂ 5tcppcc| off the train, and l-lc.acfcd to the homes of
the town's leaders to tell them the news.

They listened and then told her, *it will not happen here. They will only kill
Jews in the formerly held Russian territories because they cannot distinguish
between Communists and Jews. But here theH know we wc-rc never under Russian
rule”

sHow does one mistake small children, babies at their mother's breasts for
communists?” she d:mandcd.

The leaders insisted they were right and demanded she not tell anyone
alse. : :

Bronia was obedient, but each night the wheels of the passing train

Puundcd the memories of those pictures into her soul.




in the previous summer, H-n.-_ summer of 1541, h‘i..;n:zu:Lu Fam||ﬂ Was among the

huge numbers of refugees searching for a safe haven. In the confusion the family

was gotten 5r.|::s!.r;:ted.

Bronia and her two small sons went to Dembitz, while her husband managed
to reach Warsaw.

One day Bronia recaived a letter from her husband asking her and the
children to join him in Warsaw. The letter said he had discussed this matter with
his rr_H:e, t_.hc Great Rabbi of Radomsk. Th:ﬂ concluded Bronia and the children
should come to Warsaw.

Bronia feared Warsaw. She felt that small towns were safer than big cities.
Nevertheless, she bcgan Pa-:kcl'nﬁ. Who was she to quz&h’an such wisdom?

When she finished packing, exhausted, she fell asleep on the couch. She
had the following dream.

*Bronia, the children, and a large multitude of Jews were herded together
into a _gigantic open space. It was very cold there. Ev:rﬂthmg is covered with ice
and snow and the wind is w*natlmg_. The Fu:aplc try to get warm, to seck shelter,
but guards are Postcd in all directions. The uniformed guards beat the rad-clad

risoners with truncheons and long whips. The Jews try to run between the blows
but the huge space is scaled off with no exits. They are all trapped. Suddenly
they are all in Warsaw. Groups of Jews are being led to their deaths. Then Warsaw
is :mpticd of its ]ivins Jews and is Filled with carpses. A strange silence descends
upon it. Not a 5in5[c sound is heard. Then the ni5|-1t flares up. Warsaw i5 l:iurnins—-
the houses, the :nurtyards, and the 5trcct‘5—-:vcrﬂthih5 is ane hugc flame. The
flames die. Warsaw is reduced to charred, sooty ruins, amidst which grows a tree
trunk with five l:auca.{)nly five Fcopl: remain among the ruins, Bronia, her two
children, and two adult strangers Bronia does not recognize. Together they
search for other |iw'n5 P:op!e, but in vain. There are none. As 'cth walk, the earth
under their feet begins to rumble. The sewers open, and underground, huge gray
]-'-“'FH rise up and fill the streets. Red stars bcgln to flow in a pﬂwcr'Ful stream from
the pipes, rivers of red stars. But Bronia, her two children and the strangers
remain utanding on solid Eraund, The stars turn into the rows and columns of a
marchins army, the Red army..."

Bronia awoke. Sitting among her Fachcd things she was Frighh:ncd. She
decided not to go Warsaw.

In 1943, the daﬂs before Rosh Hashanah were difficult for the Koczicki
Family in Slotwina Breshko. It was now clear their last journey would be soon.

Bronia had false papers, but her husband and mother-in-law did not. After
much deliberation, a painFut decision was made. Bronia would leave the Shcttﬂ to
try to ol-_ptain Arﬂan papers for her husband and mother-in-law.

Bronia would take her youngest son with her and leave her older son, Zvi

with is his father and Srandmotl'ler.




Bronia hc::':s‘dr_-:! a tramn +'r||e_‘rj with German |._rH'1.:-r.rs.. Her Hunr:{: |'1::|r. Hue
eyes, and Berlin accent were F-cri::cl covers For her, but she was fearful little
vitahak mif,lht give them awaly.

The German afficers .'_'il.‘.'!.tl:c'] next to her struck up conversations with her
Before long their remarks about Jews were ».-'L||I_1.:ar and brutal, althﬂugh thr._L_j
;:Fn|c.15|:cd.tn Bronia for using such vile language in front of a |ad__;¢.

ThankFully, little Yitshak slept. The train soon reached Bochnia, Bronia’s
destination, :ihc-;.uait!:-:] until 'Iusr before the train was to d:f.r::rt, and then 5"""“'.‘:’
got up, and 5teppcc[ off the train onto the Platmcu'rm,_'}u.ﬁt as the train -‘iFl:E] off.

A few days later, Bronia was able to obtain papers for her husband and
mother-in-law. With a very reliable courier Bronia sent the papers to her husband
in Slotwina Brzesko. Daily, Bronia H{:F:d her husband; son and mother-in-law
would come. They didn’t.

On the ::Ia._:j she'd |::-|anm:.c| to leave to search for them, Bronia got a letter
from her husband. The papers had arrived, but his mother wouldn't leave and he
could not leave her alone. He H-:Jpr_.c] Bronia would forgive him.

A Few dz‘:ﬂs |atcr, Bronia received a second letter. He told her their worst
fears were true. They'd all been taken a transport in Tarnow. There, the men were
separated from the women, and he from his mother. He feared for her, but Zhiv
was with him. He continued his letter saying little vhiztak should be three on Rosh
Hashanah and she should cut his hair and make sure he sure he wore a tallit katan
so that he would a|waHE remember he was a Jew. He begged her forgiveness if he
had ever offended her during their marriage. He forgave her and thanked her for
the wonderful years God had given them tnseth:r to build a Famﬂﬂ. A substantial
sum of monecy was enclosed within the letter. After “:‘:":”"5"5 the |cttc.r, Bronia

| rushedtoaan expert smuggler, one who was able to transport Fcc-F-h:.
*To Tarnov | do not rr:n.-el,' he told her. Bronia offered to pay dr;:u|:-|c, but

: he refused.
| A Few .-:Ia_:_._gr- later Rabbi 1srael Abraham Kozicki was sent to the gas chamber.

On his last journey from Tarnov to Belzac he was able to break an iron bar out of
| the cattle car's only window. He managed to squeeze his son through it and he
tossed Zhiv from the speeding train. He was sure somehow Bronia would find him.
Before he released Zhiv to freedom, Rabbi Isracl Abraham Kozicki hugged
a aiezpy Zhiv and Wl‘ilﬁPGl’t‘.CI- to be strong and courageous, for out there was a |:an'_
| God, father of the Universe who watches over all his children. After a quicic kiss,
| Zhiv Flew from his father’'s warm arms into the cold, dark night. He landed in the
brushes near a hugc pine tree. Bruised, b|e:drn_5_, suffering from shock, he called
out to his Father in a faint voice until he was silenced h!’! cold and Fati_guc, The

train was gone. He was alone.
Somechow, Bronia, in the Bronchia ghetto, sensed her son would be found

along the Tarnov-Belzec tracks. She hired a Polish peasant and FH'bet:CI him da_H




::I‘Icl nlﬁht .-‘u!rrn_q.’_, the drath road. T he peasa nt Fs-r-.-_rcndcd ko I:.u- !ﬂ;!t'hl:ﬂﬂg
mu_J.--|-rrc.1-__-rr|.- ina hugc basket in the 1-';1rr5'c 11-_:+ the h’ﬁ.‘.!'ﬁﬂ.
One ri.'a_q, on the side of the tracks, the F-r.nsant noticed a pair of small

shoes on top of a bush. The shoes were on the feet of a small boy who was more

dead than alive. He rushed him to Bochnia.
In the Bochnia huﬁfnt‘:], Zhiv |-.-.‘_-5.1r1 to 5|ﬂw|_L__1 re:spnnd to what was

h;iPF:nlns around him. He .::I.-.-:r-:d his eyes. Bronia was heard him call for his

father. The road to recovery would be long.
Sometime later, Bronia was wnl'ir.ing, in one of the Shr.th:r wm'ks!ﬁnpa. She
and ran to the |-n.-a.-»pita|. She had a strange premonition that

:'u_amz-.til-lurllj.-;I terrible was going to 11._11::|:u:n to her son. ['.‘-'r.sf_utc the nurses’ |::rnt:=~t..‘-.
she bundled him up and ran with him in her arms out of the hcn.-s:pltaf

That ﬁi-E;]'lE. November 15, 1944, all the PnuF-:|c in the hu:mFrh]t. medical
personnel included, 44 Jews in all, were shot to death. Zhiv was safe at home.

Bronia had manascd to save her two small children. Now she atte mpt:d to

1.'IFE:IF_'IFIE d c\-i.'.r_:._ithm_kj,

save two more children, her twin nieces, Leah and Brasha

Despite all her efforts Bronia was unable to abtain working papers for
Leah and Brasha. Without these papers, the 5ir15 became |||c.53| residents in the
ghetto, a crime Fuﬂr’shaH: bf.l death, for them and for those who gave them

shelter
Sheltering the girls, Bronia kept trying get them the papers, but failed.

T|-||r15:- got worse in the E,hr.tta. Her n:ighbc:r.-., other rei:ugccn, dcmandcﬁ she

evict the girls.
Out of options, Bronia decided upon a dc:ﬁp:rah: F-L'm. She told no one for

fear of b:ing l'::tra_:_{:d.

That nislﬂt, .;Fh:r a [onS daﬂ of work, she sat down to write an official letter
in German. She wrote and rewrote it until she was satisfied.

The following morning, Bronia set her blonde, wavy, hair, dressed in her
best clothes and set out for the Gestapo hcadquartnrﬁ. she walked with an
elegant confident stride, while praying that her true emotions of fear wouldn’t
betray her. She walked into the chief of ]::cnlic.:’u. office. There, Bronia was
welcomed like an old friend. She sat on the edge of the officer's desk. Scon
friendly conversation dc-.-:h}pcd among Bronia, the head of the Gestapo,
Schamburlg, and the Gestapo man kKunda, who were known for their unlimited lust
for bribes.

During the course of the conversation, Bronia, ::-liFFed ten snld coins into
the hands of each with a promise there would be more to follow. She soon learned
that the ghetto would be |-qui::|atr.d in the near future and only those with foreign
passports and papers would be aparz:c].

As the two officers escorted Bronia to the door, telling her how much they

had :n_'logcd her company, she stappcd.



'('}I'n, _qcntl:m:n.' she told thcrn. *l, too, cﬂ}uﬂ:r.d aur conversation so much

this little letter nearly slipped my mind. I'm sure that gentl

will have no Fral‘x!:m in forwarding the letter to Tarmow thmu:;_:,h proper channels

and getting a favarable rr.Fr|5.|_'

Thcﬂ rctur'ncd to 5n;hum|:::rg'5 olfice where he 5tam[_‘ltd it with marked it

with seals; then Placcd it in the outgoing mail,

in the letter, Bronia had assumed the rdl‘.r‘ltIIH of her dead sister-in-law,
Miriam, the girl's mother. As a native of Berlin who had held a British passport,

*Miriam® had rr_qu:st-r_.ri her documents. A Few daH.ﬁ later, the papers arrived, from

Gestapo Hcadq uarters in Tarnow.
This Pr:s:nted a dilemma to Bronia. Her sister-in-

older and her picture on the paﬁspnrt didn't resemble Bronia. Bronia's sons were
younger than the children nearest to them on Miriam’s ?assfﬂt,‘rrt. if she took the
chance of using the passport, she might be able to save the twins because they
were listed on the |:1;|5:'-pnrt. hﬂ using her own papers she hﬂd a much better
chance of saving herself and her sons, the girl's fate would be sealed.

Bronia, feeling she needed advise, wrote a letter to the world famous
Boyaner Rabbi and sent it to him in the Tarnow ghetto through a messenger.

Rabbi Moshe Friedman, Reb Moshenu as he was known by his Hasidism,
L-.nr:FuHH studied the letter. Then, he stood up and in a clear and resolute voice
said to the messenger, *God is everywhere, in Bochnia, in Paraguay, and in Eretz
visracl. Butin this Partir_u|ar casc, Fu:rhap.-, papers from Bretz Yisreal are
prcdrc.tn|:|-|c. Use them and magy the merit of the |'|o|5. FurcFathcrs and grandFathcrs
protect her and her fFour children and guide their steps to safety and life. ror
saving a soul is among the noblest acts a person can do. As stated by our sages,

‘whosoever Prcrtl:r_l'ﬁ a 5.|r15|.: soul of 1srael, .*jc.rlFl-urca ascribes ta him as thcush

he has Freuerucd a cﬂmp|etc world.?

The messenger returned saFe[H and gave Bronia the message.

in the summer of 194%, Bronia was d:pnrtcd Fram Bochnia with other
holders of Fureign passports and papers to Berge n-Belsen. Not long after their
arrival in the camp’s foreign national sector,the Bochnia ghetto was iiqurdatcd in

Septe mber of 194%.

As the British forces aFPraachcd the gates of bcrgcn—b:lscn, Bronia, her
sons and the twins, tasct!'ler with a few thousand Jews, all holders of foreign
passports were p|accc| aboard a train. They were depcrtcd and killed. As they
were taken from the train to a ncarbﬁ forest to be shot near Masdcbcrs,

Germany, the American Army liberated them.
AUTHOR'S NOTE:

| am not Jc.wnah, but have |ﬂn5 held a 5Pccia| Fv|ar_e in my heart for the

victims, survivors and families of the Holocaust.

emen in Houl‘ F::r.!:hn-n

aw I'lad bCfl‘l 'I:I'u": Hl..‘.ﬂrﬂ-

knew immediately | wanted Bronia to be among the woman of divination, t

Pcrmissinn. However, my heart would not allow me to leave Bronia behind.

| have read every 5tor_q_,j | could about the Holocaust victims. In the l:arh.l,t

r_-:shl:if_-s, | came across a wonderful baok cntitlr.d, Hasidic Tales of the Hoiﬂcaunt,
LH vaffa Bliach. She was a Prol:caaur at brﬂauﬁn Ca”cs: that&athcr:d these
Hasidic stories for her book. 1 loved all the stories in the book, but 1 F:artu:ularly
loved the story of Bronia.

while canni{fcrins what women | would include in my current art Prcdcct. I

ase

women who listen to their dreams, listen to the still small vaice within, and can still

remain open to advice from without.

Unfudunatc[&, | could not reach vaffa Eliach to ask her Fu:rm'rsﬁion to

include Bronia's story. | could not find .ElﬂHtI"IinEr about Bronia to ask her mHﬁ-t:“:.
I'm sure the Failing& are my own, but my nnlu intent is to honor both vaffa Eliach
and Bronia, so | 1:1':5 their Fnrsiwr_ncm for including her story withﬂut, upcciFic,
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HARRIET TUBMAN
Harriet Tubman was born Araminta *Minty" Ross to slave F::rcnts. Harriet
(*Rit*) Green and Ben Ross.
M-::dr._-ntu,. rubman's maternal 5--.-mdm::-t'|-u:r. came to United States on a
:1 child, Tubman was told that she was of Ashanti |1n|:af;_‘;i:. Tubman

slave 51’1iF. As
she was born and it varied in several records as 1820,

Was never sure of the year
1822, and 1825.

Her mother Rit was a cook for the Brodess Fami@. Her father Ben was a
skilled woodsman who managed the timberwork on Thompson's Pfan’tatiun. They
married around 1808 and, according to court records, thcﬂ had nine children
together: Linah, born in 1808, Mariah Ritty in 1811, Soph in 1813, Robert in 1816,
Minty (Harriet) in 1822, Ben in 1823, Rachel in 1825, Henry in 18%0, and Moses in

1832.

Rit f.tru551r.d to Lcc:P their Family tns.-:tht.r. tdward Brodess sold three of

her daughters separating them from the family forever.

Rit got word that a trader wanted to L-nuH Moses, Rit's youngest son. She
hid the bcﬂ for a month among other slaves but things came to a head when
Brodess came to the door to collect the boy. Rit barred the door, and Frumi.ﬁc&

the owner if he took one more step, she'd sPI:t his head open. Brodess left. That

experience would influence Tubman the rest of her life.
When she was Fivc., Brodess hired her out as a nursemaid to a woman named

*Miss Susan.” Tubman was to Inccp watch on the |::ra|'_\_r._| as it slept; and if it woke

and cried, Tubman was wlﬁippcd. One daH she was lashed five times before

breakfast. She found ways to resist, including wearing layers of clothing as

protection against beatings.
Tubman also hired out to a p[antt:r named James Cook. She became soill

from her duties that Cook sent her back to Brodess. He kth hiring her out and
Tubman lived with hard work and acute homesickness.

As an a&o|¢ﬁccnt Tul}man was sent to a r:lr'ﬂ-g_uods store I:ar suPFHe.s_
There, a slave owned by another family had left the fields without permission. His
aoverscer d:mande.& that Tubman hc[p restrain the young man. :5|"|e rcl:ua::t:l, and
he threw a tw::n-Pnum:l weight at the slave. He struck Tubman and *broke her
skull.* Bleeding and unconscious, Tubman was brought to the renter’s house and
laid on the seat of a loom, where she ﬂ-taged without medical care for two &aﬂa.
She was sent back into the fields, *with blood and sweat rolling down my face until
| couldn't see.” He returned her to Brodess.

This began her time of visions. Like Joan of Arc before her, she believed
she had divine visions and communication with a higher power. Others believed
this as well. Slaves would later say how she could *consult with God on journeys
back north. It was this belief that led Thomas Garrett to say, I've never met a
person of any color, who had more confidence in the voice of God, as spohcn




direct to her soul.®
d others in her I:.urn:lH had =divine 541:!5..’ Rit believed

ord, a teacher who h:lpr.-i

Harriet also beliave
her powers came from the Ashantis. Sarah Bradf

TU].'H'H.:.!H wrike and Fquﬁh 1'1.:1' L‘i:_'-gr.sph_q nsrcm:i. crht.' wrokte in her own bﬂﬂlﬂ. on
she 1ma.5im:5 that

Tubman, *when these turns of 5.r:|mn.n1:m;: come upon Harriek,
her '5|.-.ur'|t' leaves her l':—u:]q and visits f_!t'|-|cr scenes and Flﬂcc:-, noat l.'.'l'll_l.j mn t'ni!i-

world, but in the world of 5p:r|ts... -
sThe Ashanti shamans are accustomed to !-pll'i
le this pc:wrrFul :-F-iritual tool is Fresh in her ge nes.”

tual travel and dream

'I.'r.iiu:‘-‘.:ng. It is -.:.n:r'tam]ﬂ Fl’.:l:iﬁll'_‘l
However, others believed she was having seizures and would fall asleep.
These cpmr:ld:g were alnrmuns to her Familu_.l, unable to wake her. This condition
remained with Tubman for the rest of her life.

Tubman didn’t have religious doctrine, but she amquirf:d a passionate faith

in God. Her visions and dreams, which she tDﬂﬂid:l‘cd signs from the Gnn:l, would

n!waHu Suidc her.

Around 1844, she married a free black man named John Tubman. The union
was c.-::mp|1catcd because of her slave status, Since the mother's status dictatcd
that of children, any children
barn to them would be enslaved. Tubman c’h:mgcd her name from Araminta to
Harriet soon after her marriage.

in 1849, Tubman became ill again, and her value as a slave was diminished.
mrodess tried to sell her, but couldn't. Angry at his Ercc&_{j and unjust actions,
Tubman began to pray for her owner, asking God to make him change his ways.

when it aFFc.ardd as thﬂugl'l a sale was l-n.:.inE; concluded, she switched
tactics. °l r.hanscd my Fraﬂtr." she said. “I b:gan to pray, oh Lord, if you ain‘t
never going to .:hangc. that man's heart, Lill him, Lord, and take him out of the
wa_:_.j.'
A week later, he died, and Tubman rcSrcth—.d her earlier sentiments.

His death made Tubman’'s sale more likely. In estate scttlements slaves were
Frcqucntlﬂ sold and families broken apart. Eliza Brodess began working to sell th
Family's slayes. Tubman decided the Brodess Family wouldn't decide her fate.

Before Tubman eacapcd from slavery, she had a dream where she Flew over
towns, Fields and mountains, «/ike a bird.* During the dream she saw "a great
fence or sometimes a river, as well as a women dressed in white reaching out for
her.*

She said didn’t known the meaning of the dream until her escape to the
north when she saw the very same F‘ar.:c from the dream and met the women along
the undcrsruund railroad that resembled the woman in her dream.

Soon afterward Tubman’s first attempt failed, she :scaPe& again.
E-cl:r_':-rchaﬂd, she sent word to her mnth:r thﬂug_,h a coded slave SONE.

Tubman made use of the Undcrsround Railroad.
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Tubman had to travel J:-_:_J mg_,ht, 5uu:1:d h_:_:, the North Star; tr}jjng to avoid
slave catchers, eager to collect rewards for Fug,ltwe slaves.

The *conductors® in the LJm:[crE'ruund Railroad used dc.c,-:Ptlcm.'.- for

rotection. At an early stop, the [ad_q of the house ordered Tubman to so sweep

the H.il’d as to scem to be wnr]r.ms for the FamitH. Familiar with the woods and
marshes of the region, Tubman likely hid in these locales during the day.

She crossed into Pennsylvania and recalled the experience years later:
swhen 1 found | had crossed that line, 1 looked at my hands to sec if | was the same

person. There was such a glory over everything; the sun came like gold through L —

the trees, and over the fields, and 1 felt like | was in Heaven.* -
After reaching Philadelphia, Tubman thought of her Family. She said later. - W E H T E n

*I was free, but my family should be free too.” :

She worked odd }nhs. and saved money. The U.5. Congress meanwhile neaﬂ ur Elwa
Png-:ied 'chc I‘ugitﬁ': 5!.3.;.1- Law of 1850, which hr.:wilﬂ Pumsh:.c' abettlns i:!.capn: and 1] Hll‘l’ilt "Hﬂus“ Tnhmin
forced law enforcement officials—even in states that had outlawed slavery—to ¢12 000 Reward
assist in their captun_-_. Sputhern Ontario, which had abolished :-Iav:rq_.;. became

the new Favarite destination.

in December 1850 Tubman was warned that her niece Kessiah and her two
children, ai:-Hc.ar-oid James Alfred, and baby Araminta, soon would be sold.
Tubman went to Baltimore, where her brother-in-law Tom Tubman hid her until the
sale. Kessiah's husband, a free black man named John Bowley, made the winning
bid for his wife. Then, while he Fr:tcnd:d to make arrangements to pay, Kessiah
and their children esr_apcd to a nearby safe house. when night fell, Bowley sailed
the Famiiﬂ on a log canoe 60 miles to Baltimare, where tth met with Tubman, who
|'.rr-::u5|'|t the Fam'r|_g to Fh-[m:[:.|p|1ia.

During her second triF she recovered her brother Moses and two
unidentified men. With each trip she became more confident. Her leading so many
individuals from slavery caused abolitionist William L[nﬂd Garrison to name her
*Moses,” a“udmg to the Frapl’:ct in the Book of Exodus.

in the fall of 1851, Tubman returned to Dorchester County for the first time
since her escape, this time to Find her husb:—md, John. When she arrived, she sent
word Far him to jain her. He declined. He'd married another woman. At First, her
Erir.'F and angcr_w:n: excessive. But Fma"g. she thnusl'lt. *if he could do without
her, she could do without him,” and so *he drﬂppcd out of her heart.* She found
that all F:,rs-:nal aims had drapped out of her heart as well. And with her aimplc
words, *I can IJHIH die but once,” she became Moses.

She found slaves who wanted to escape and led them to Fhiladclphia.
Frederic Douglass and Tubman showed a great admiration for one another
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other brothers, He nry, Ben, and Robert. their wives and some of their children.
She also Fruvl&:r.l 5Fu:|:|!:|r_ instructions for about 50 to 0 other Fuslh'vr..ﬁ who
F:!n:.:lFl:ci ta the north.

During one trek, she suddenly collapsed and fell into a trance-like sleep
und dr:amt t51rrc Was Srcat ciang:r‘ .]hcad. "|'|'|'||:n 51‘1-: awolicc, hhc DFC[I:TEd thl‘-
refugees to cross a near-by river that turned out to have shallows, never rising
above their necks, thus removing their scent from the trail. Harrict later
discovered that if she had followed her original E:r|.ar-. they would have met a posse
t|‘|.=|t was waltlng Fnr ti'n:m.

Once she had made contact with CﬁcaFl'inS slaves, thcﬂ left town on

.‘b.aturda_q cvcnin_e_,ﬁ. since newspapers would not Fr-nt runawag notices until : = =
Mr_hm:la_rj- morning. \’\ J_\ \ r 14 l)
when going on thesa journcﬂs she often |.33 alone on the Hoor all night. Her . - 2
soul was filled with the awe of the mysterious Unseen Presence, which Filled her l }I ’\ I ) { }l{ \ I l \ l
with such depths of emotion, that all other care and Fear vanished. it was during for Stealing Shives
these times that she would often 5Fu:a|: with her Maker. . - -
vears later, she told an audience: *I was conductor of the Underground Harnel Moses
Railroad for EISI‘H‘ years, and | can say what most conductors can't say — | never
ran my train off the track and | never lost a pa&scng,:r.' S0 000 H* Wit ll
One of her last missions into Marghnd was to retrieve her aging parents. =y T
She traveled to the Eastern Shore and led them north to St. Catharines, Ontario,
where a commu nitﬂ of former slaves finciudlns Tubman's !‘.‘Al'nl']'rcra, aother rc|atwcs,
and maniy friends) had Sathcr:c].
Tubman met John Brown in .AFrn[ of 1858, and when she First laid eyes on
him she realized she had seen him betore.
The previous winter, in an interview with sanborn, Tubman told him of a
recurring dream she'd been haw’ng. Sanborn later wrote about the re-occurring
dream in an article in the Boston Commonwealth.
“She t}raugﬁt she was in a ‘wilderness sort a.rflp}'a::c, all full of rocks and
r'_':ru.sfrc.s, ' when she saw a serpent raise its head amaong the rocks, and as it did so,
it became the head of an old man with a J'an_g white E-car.:i', gazfn_g at her wishful
fi'f:e,j'ust as if her were going to .'iFEﬂk to me,' and then two young heads rose up
beside him, younger than he—and as she as she stood J"ag::l'::'n_g at them, and
wanc{cring what thc_y could want with her, a crowd af'_grear men rushed in and
struck down the gounger heads, and the head of the older man still faofu’n_g at her

so wishful,”
A|t|‘mu5h Tubman r:casni:cd him from the dream, she didn't realize what it

meant until Brown acted on his F-|ana at Harpcr Fcrrﬂ.
She never advocated violence asainat whites, but aSrc:d with direct action

Tubiman

and 5uppnrtcc| his Sﬂah.
Tubman thPe& John Brown Fian an& recruit for the ra'rd at HarFeru I“crrﬂ,
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rks and resources in the border states -;11:

Her Iu:.n::w!:cisc of :’-IJF\'P::rrt' netwo
lanners.

Pennsylvania, Maryla nd and Delaware was invaluable to Brown and his P
Tubman was busy during this time, giving talks to abolitionist audiences and
tending to her relatives. In the autumn of 18499, as Brown and his men prcparcd to

launch the attack, Tubman could not be contacted. When the raid on Harpers

Ferry took Pi;:.:: she was in New York and felt her heart Huttcrmg. 5he told her

Hostess John Brown was in trou ble.
« In r.ar!_l)! 1859, T ubman honsht a small piece of land on the outskirts of

Auburn, New York and Tubman Eruught her Parr.nt:n to live with her. -

Her land in Aul‘}urn became a 1’111'.1:'!‘! For T uhman's F-EH‘N!'H am:] {rr'cnt.'[{p Far
years, she took in relatives and boarders, offering a sate Plar.r far black
Americans .-icr:L.inS a better life in the north.

Tubman had a vision of emancipation as car|ﬂ as 1861, She shared her visian
with black Abolitionist Henry Garrett, wha believed ogply his srandchi]drcn would
see it. She dlaasr::d stating it would come soon, in their liFetime. "My Pr.chF: are
Free, my Frc:.‘:Fr|c are Freel®, she declared.

when the American Civil war broke out in 1861, Tubman became a fixture in
the Union camps. when the Port Royal district became free, she began gathering
former slaves tor a regiment of black soldiers.

Tubman served as a nurse in Port Royal, aiding soldiers suffering from
dysentery and rendering assistance to men with 5ma”Pm-.; that she did not
contract the disease herself started more rumors that she was blessed by God.

when Lincoln Fina”H issued the Lmnncipation Proclamation in January
!aé},l'w:r sFur:ts lifted. Before |ﬂn5 she was |ca-:|in_;_qa band of scouts thruush the
land around Port Hoﬂa[. Her group, workins under the orders of Secretary of war
Edwin M. Stanton, anlFl:cl the untamiliar terrain and reconnoitered its
inhabitants. She later Pro».-rd::.:l l-:c!.j mtclligcnr.c that aided the caFturc of
Jacksonville, Florida.

Later t’nat year, Tubman becamea the first woman to lead an armed assault
during the Civil War. Tubman guided three steamboats around Confederate mines
in the waters leading to the shore. When the steamboats sounded their whistles,
slaves thrnushaut the area understood that it was E:n:mg, liberated. Tubman
watched slaves utamptdt the boats. *I never saw such a mght,' she said later. As

confederate troops raced to the scene, steamboats took off. More than 750

slaves were rescued.

Tubman returned to Auburn after the war. Tubman didn't receive a pension
for her service until 1899. She lived in a state of poverty.

She worked variuus_jcl:_-s to support her elderly parents, and took in
boarders ta hclp pay the bills. One of the pcﬂph: Tuhman took in was a Civil War
veteran named Nelson Davis. They soon fell in love. Though he was 22 years
than she was, on March 18, 1869, they married and spent the next 20 years

tn&cthcr, In 1874 thcﬂ adcpted a !'.‘l“shﬂ 5ir| named Gertie.

Tubman began attending mectings of suffragist organizations, and was
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soon warlcing a]onssidc women such as Susan B. Anthonﬂ and tmiiﬂ Howland.
Tubman traveled to New \"ark, Boston, and Waahmsl:ﬂn, D.C. to :5Fca|r. out in Favor
of women's voting rights. She used the sacrifices of countless women throughout
modern hiutorﬂ. as evidence of women's cqu.ﬂitﬂ. to men. When the National
Federation of Afro-American Women was founded in 1896, Tubman was the
keynote speaker at its first meeting.

At the turn of the 20th century, she donated a ?arccl of real estate to the
AME church, so that it could become a home for 'ng_cc' and lndigcnt colored
Pcnl:lle. Tubman was &iamaa:d when the church ordered residents to pay a $100
entrance fee, but could do little to change it.

EIH 19211, she had to be admitted into the rest home named in her honor.
Surrounded bH friends and Fﬂl‘l‘ll[ﬂ mcml:mru, Harriet Tubman died of Pn:umﬂ-nia on
March 10 in 1921%. Just before she drcd. she told those in thc room: °| g0 to
prepare a F-Inc_e for you."
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GERTRUDE MORGAN

Sister Gertrude Morgan was a Prcachcr, missionary, artist, musician, and

poet who worked in New Orleans in the 19608 and '70s, notable primarily far her
folk art.
S5hea was born in 1900 in Lafa_:;ctrc, Alabama in a poor farming Family.

Circumstances were such that she had to leave school before completing the third
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Ini218 she moved to Columbus Georgia. In 1918 she married will Morgan.

in 1938, at the age of 38, she believed she heard a voice from God telling her
to, *Go preach, tell it to the world!” Morgan was so moved by the experience she
left her husband, will, and her Fami|3 and moved to New Orleans.

She became a street :v.-m_gclmt and was soon a rc5u|.1r Fixture on the
streets of New Orleans. However, she did mare than Prcach. she sang, P]‘-’Hr‘d
E‘uutﬂr and tambourines.

She also nrsamzcd an ﬂrPl"lanuEt with the hel
She used the money she made with her Pr.:uching and music to h:|P support the
orphanage.

in 1958, she believed she had another vision where God told her she was the
Bride of Jesus and to begin dressing in white.

Morgan said of this experience, *I did my missionary work
Robe around 18 years, teaching holiness and rig!wt:uusnr,s!-. That
so dear, he took me out of the Black Robe and began dressing me in white.”

Thus she adopted a white habit and moved out of the orphanage to
establish *The tvcr|35t|n5 E.asp-:! Mission® in the French Quarter of New Orleans.

In 1960's, she heard another message from God. Maorgan said, *God told me
to leave the streets, give up the music, and find a new way to speak the E-‘:‘*F":l-'
She took up drawins and paintinS in an attempt to depsct her mission with God,
:!‘.I:-ecra"H about the Book of Revelations She Faintcd in order to create visual
aids For her F}r:ar_hing. Her paintings use a colorful religious ir.nnasraF}:_-j. She
painted on whatever was at hand, including styrofoam trays, window shades and

of two other missionaries.

in t]"l: f'.-laclt.
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even toilet paper rolls.
Music was one another of the tools of her ministry, and in the early 1970s,

Let's Make A Record was recorded in order to capture Morgan singing and playin
her tambourine.

in 1974, after another vision from the Lord, she quit painting to devote
herself to Frtacl'ung and to her poetry. She died in 1980.

ror Morgan, her religious mission was the only purpose for her art.
However, the art world I:]'u:nug}'rt &E”:rcntl&. In 2003, the New Orleans Museum of
Art F—rcs-:nl:ed the first cumprch:nﬁivc collection of her art. Her art brought her
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Also in 2003, the Rupcadupc label released King Britt presents Sister

Gertrude Morgan, which took the a caFFcHaftamhourine recordings of Let's Make
A Record and added contemporary beat programming and instrumentation. The
album received rave reviews and created a new, young audience for Sister
Gertrude Morgan. The album artwork featured her paintings.

Sister Gertrude Morgan, with an irresistible charisma and evangchcal zeal,
ensured her spiritual and material legacy as preacher, prophet, poet, painter, and
5;15Fr| singer. Althouﬁh tﬂdﬂg celebrated PrimarﬂH for her diminutive but ecstatic
Faintingﬁ of Biblical and Pcrnuna[ divine revelation, inscribed in text and

illustrated in images, her art F:l-r:l-:hr:c was but one facet of a life lived in pious

service to the Lord.
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